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intent to automatically require the use of a qualifying special purpose entity (“QSPE”) tor
whole loan sales involving credit enhancements, which is how transfers of mortgage
loans from PFIs to MPF Banks are structured. In particular, we believe that the ED was
intended to address transfers of a portion of an individual financial asset rather than a
transfer of a whole loan. However, the ED is not clear with respect to this point, and
accordingly, we are requesting clarification as discussed in more detail below.

If our understanding of the FASB’s intent is not correct, then it is important to note that
the automatically requiring a QSPE for whole mortgage loan sales involving credit
enhancements would significantly and, we believe unnecessarily raise the cost for our
members of selling loans under the MPF Program, many of which are small in size and
for which all in cost is a critical factor. Further, the requirement of a QSPE will raise
regulatory issues for the Bank and other FHLBs which currently are not allowed to create
or have a residual beneficial interest in a QSPE. In other words, without a change in our
regulations, we may not be able achieve our mission statement. The remainder of our
comment letter (1) requests the FASB to clarify the ED such that the requirement to
utilize a QSPE only pertains to cases where a “legal” ownership interest in an individual
financial asset does not qualify as a participating interest and (2) endorses the dissent by
Board members discussed in paragraphs A51 and AS2.

Request for Clarification:

We believe that the term “ownership interest” as used in paragraph 8 of the ED should be
clarified to limit its usage to the legal definition of ownership interest. This is because
the purpose of establishing a QSPE is to achieve legal isolation under applicable law. As
a result, we believe participating interests should be defined solely from a legal
perspective. As currently drafted, ownership interest could be interpreted to include an
ownership interest from an accounting perspective. For example, the Bank purchases
whole mortgage loans from its members. From a legal perspective, the Bank is buying
the entire mortgage loan rather than a portion of an ownership interest in an individual
financial asset or mortgage loan. This i1s why we do not believe it was the FASB’s intent
to automatically require the use of a QSPE. However, from an accounting perspective,
the member selling the mortgage loans may record a retained interest (beneficial interest
under the ED) in the mortgage loans suggesting that they also have an ownership interest
in the mortgage loans. Specifically, certain MPF products involve the Bank utilizing
performance based credit enhancements from its members to credit enhance the mortgage
loans. When loan losses occur, the member does not come out of pocket for this credit
enhancement but rather the Bank withholds payment of the performance based credit
cnhancement fee. From an accounting perspective, the “Guide to Implementation of
Statement 140 on Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities,” Q&A 68, views the member transferring the mortgage
loans as holding a retained interest (beneficial interest under the ED) rather than a
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liability because the member would not have to write a check to cover the credit loss. As
a result, paragraph 8 of the ED could apply and a QSPE would be required because the
member’s interest would be subordinate to the Bank’s interest. It also should be noted
that certain MPF products only involve a credit enhancement that would be recorded as a
financial guarantee liability under Q&A 68. In these cases, the guarantee may be viewed
as an ownership interest for accounting purposes but not legal purposes — €.g. guarantees
can be viewed as variable interests pursuant to FIN 46. We recommend that “ownership
interests” that are derived from generally accepted accounting principles rather than the
legal definition of “ownership interest” should not automatically require a QSPE.

From the perspective of meeting the legal isolation criterion, it also should be noted that
the 1ssue of FDIC repudiation does not relate to the sale of an entire financial asset, even
if such sale includes recourse against the seller. Specifically, the FDIC adopting release
of 12 CFR Part 360 “Treatment by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as
Conservator or Receiver of Financial Assets Transferred by an Insured Depository
Institution in Connection With a Securitization or Participation” dated July 27, 2000,
states the following:

On the other hand, a transaction that purports to be a sale (not a participation) of
all of a financial asset, even if it includes recourse against the seller, which would
be characterized as a sale under the general legal view, should not need to be
encompassed by the rule; the FDIC would not be able to recover transferred
assets as a result of repudiation. In the case of a completed sale, the FDIC would
have nothing to repudiate if no further performance is required. Even in the case
of a sale transaction that imposes some continuing obligation, a repudiation by
the FDIC would relieve the FDIC from future performance, but generally should
not result in a recovery of any property that was transferred by the institution
before the appointment of the conservator or receiver.

On a separate but related matter, we believe that the definition of “beneficial interest”

should be modified to reflect the fact that a beneficial interest can exist without the use of
a QSPE as a result of Q&A 68.

Endorsement of Dissenting Opinion:

We strongly endorse the dissenting opinion of Board members provided in paragraphs
AS51 and AS52. Specifically, we agree with their view that it is inappropriate to amend
Statement 140 to impose a QSPE requirement for simple disproportionate transfers of
portions of financial assets when an entity and its legal advisors have concluded that it is
not necessary to achieve legal isolation under applicable law. We also object to the
implication that the insertion of a QSPE somehow changes the economics and enhances
1solation of the assets beyond what would be achieve through a well-executed contractual
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sales agreement. Though the economics of the transaction are not changed by use of a
QSPE, the costs would be greatly increased and could make such transactions prohibitive
for small financial institutions.

In summary, we request the FASB to clarify the ED, paragraph 8a, such that the
requirement to utilize a QSPE only pertains to cases where a “legal” ownership interest in
an indtvidual financial asset does not qualify as a participating interest and we strongly
endorse the dissent by Board members discussed in paragraphs AS1 and AS2.

[f you have any questions or would like to discuss our comments, please do not hesitate
to contact Michael Ericson at 312-552-2719 or me at 312-565-5714.

Sincerely,
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Roger D. Lundstrom
Executive Vice President



